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The 1953 Summer Exhibition,
S*Pilerim’s Progress’ in Many
Tands” was opened on Mon-
gday in the Moot Hall, Elstow,
by Lord Luke in his capacity
as President of the United So-
ciety for Christian Literature.

Puring the opening cere-
mony the many County per-
sonalities present heard Lord
Luke express the hope that
Bunyan's tomb in Bunhill
Fields, London, might event-
mally be brought to Elstow
churchyard.

The guests also witnessed
the presentation by Major
Simon Whitbread, on behalf of
Messrs. Whitbread and Co.,
Lid.,, of two doors f:ken from
the old Bedford County Gaol
in which Bunyan was impris-
oned.

Major Whiilbread, who pre-
sided, expressed thanks to all
those who had lent articles,
pictures, and furnifure for this
year’s exhibition, mentioning
in particular the Queen
Mother, Dr. R. Offor, Sir Dan-
vers Osborn, the United So-
ciety for Christian Literature,
and Mr. T. W. Bagshawe,

This year, he said, they had
been very successful in obtain-
ing the loan of a great many
rare editions of “Pilgrim’s
Progress ’, and also some edi-
tions published in various
places all over the world,

Saying that Bedfordshire
people had not been exactly
kind to Bunyan when he was
alive, Lord Luke added that
perhaps what they were doing
that day, and had done since
the Festival of PBritain, was
making some amends to his
memory. It wag known, he
continued, that “ Pilgrim's Pro-
gress” had been translated
into at least 148 languages, and
it was remarkable to think

what inspiration the Bunyan

Major Simon Whitbread
(left) 1looking at one of
the old prison doors, with
(left to right) Lord Luke of
Pavenham, Sir Frederick
Mander, and Ald. H. R.
Neate.
message must have given
throughout the world,

Lord Luke then said that he
did not believe Elstow would
be complete as the home of
Bunyan until they could bring
back his tomb from Bunhill
Fields and place it in Elstow
churchyard. Flstow would
then be a centre for Bunyan
and all that he meant, just as
Siratford-on-Avon was for
Shakespeare.

After wishing the present
exhibition every success, he
declared it open.

THE GAOL’S HISTORY
In making the esentation

Of ihe two gaol doors, Major
Whitbread told something of
the gaol’s history. It stood
on the north side of the junc-
tion of Silver Street and High
Strest, and it was certain that
Bunyvan spent the years 1660
to 1672 in it. It was generally
accepted that he wrote “Pil-
grim’s Progress” in the gaol.

The doors were accepted by
the Chairman of the County
Council (Sir Frederick Man-
der) with, as he said, “ a sense
of unusual pleasure”.

Referring to Lord Luke’s
suggestion, Sir Frederick said
it would be a great day for
him if the tomb of Bunyan
came home to Elstow. He did
not know what difficulties
there might be in the way of
effecting the transference but
he promised to investigate ihe
possibilities and should it
prove possible would do all
that could be done to bring
the tomb to Elstow,

County Gaol are an effeclive
introduction 1o the exhibition,
which will remain at the Moot
Hall during the summer. They
remind one sharply of ile
harsh  surroundings v “iich
Bunyan's imagination had to
pierce to reach his vivid world
of spiritual imagery.

And Bunyan's world has
never ceased itg triumphant
growth, spreading from the
little market town of Bedfo-d,
over land and sea, until !o-day
we find that, through the
medium of ©Pilgrim’s Pro-
gress”, it has found :is way
into 150 languages—mere than
any other book except the
Bible.

Some copies of these trans-
lations, a few of them pub-
lished in Bunyan's .iife-time,
comprise the exhibition, in
which each continent kas a
special show-case.

Among the English books is

the one sent by Queen Eiiza-
beth, the Queen Mother. It is
the same edition as that used
by His late Majesty King
George VL With it are 17th
century Dutch &nd French,
Russian, Spanish, (aeiic, and
many more, including an Ice-
landic. Asian editions bave
an eastern elegance in their
print, especially ihose of Tibet
and China. Africa is repre-
sented by various peoples,
from Swahili to Kaffir, and
one notes with interest the use
of real photographs to ilius-
trate the text. This practice
had to be discontinued as dis-
tinetive {ribal markings on a
dusky “ Christian® wuvsed to
arouse suspicion among readers
of another tribe,

Maoris, South Sea Islanders,
Eskimos, and Cree Indians
are a few of the nationalities
among the American and Aus-
tralasian section, which, like all
the show-cases, contains many
interesting vphotographs of its
own native types.

The volumes in the exhibi-
tion have been lent by the
United Society for Christian
Literature. Dr. R. Offor, the
School of Oriental Studies,
Buniyan Meeting, the Alexan-
der Turnbull Library at Wel-
lington. New Zealand, and
Leeds University Library. A
world map, prepared by the

The grim doors of the old United

illustrates
much more c¢learly than words

Society,

or statisties, the tremendous
circulation of *“The Pilgrim's
Progress 7.

PERMANENT ADDITIONS

These treasures, however,
are but visitors. Additions to
the permanent collection have
been made by Mr. and Mrs. T.
W. Bagshawe, Mr. W. R. Wade-
Gery. Sir Danvers Osborn,
Bart., and Mr. John G, Scholes.
Among them one noticeg ai
mezzotint of Thomag Tompion.
a stump-work panel-portraif.
of Charles-II worked in human
hair and silk, ard a charming
posy ring inscribed “The love
1 owe I cannot showe”, given
by Sir William Temple to
Dorothy Osborne. The addi-
tions which no doubt give
most satisfaction to the Moot
Hal} staff are four 17th century
oak benches which were pur-
chased with money received
from 1952 admission fees.

_ Most interesting of the paint-
ingg ig Sir Peter Lely’s port-
rait of Dorothy Osborne of
Chicksands Priory, which has
been lent by Countess Mount-
batten of Burma. Writing to
Sir William Temple, Dorothy
Osborne describes it as “the
best I ever had drawn for me.
.. . Mr. Lely will have it that

he never took more pains to |
make a good one in his life ”. ||

“family re- |

Completing a
union” are portraits of Dor-
othy’s mother, Lady Dorothy
Osborne, and her husband, Sir
William Temple. This is the
first ocecasion on which the
three pictures have been ex-
hibited together,

Another painting with a
local link is- that of the famous
Roundhead, Sir Samuel Luke,
M.P. for Bedford in the Long
Parliament and one of Crom-
well's sturdy commanders. His
picture has been lent by the
Duke of Bedford.

Bringing a refreshingly dom-
estic touch are selections from
17th century household inven-
tories. £
that the customary table-fare
for the prosperous squire in
May would include Scotch pot-
tage. loin of veal, three large
chickens, quince pie, a whole
ham, artichoke pie (hot), and

From them we find|
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belonia sausages! g
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